
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

MAY 16, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
May 16, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Tom Lancaster – Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Ann Comiskey ...................................... 1 
b) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Building Safety Month – May 2011 ...... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 11 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 12 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 12 

H-1  No Postponed Items 12 



 

 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 12 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 12 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 12 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 12 

I-4 Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure 12 

I-5 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 
2011/12 Budget 13 

I-6 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s (BRA) Proposed 
Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 13 

I-7 Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed 
Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 13 

I-8 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program – 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 14 

I-9 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2010-2013 and Early 
Retirement Incentive Program 15 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 17 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 17 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 17 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 17 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 .................................................... 17 
b) Special City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 ..................................................... 17 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 17 

a) Ann Comiskey .................................................................................................... 17 
b) Building Safety Month – May 2011 ..................................................................... 17 



 

 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 18 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 18 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 18 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 18 

L-1  Council Referrals: 18 

a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin ................ 18 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 19 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 19 

N. REPORTS 19 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Planning Commission-Draft-April 26, 2011 ........................................................ 19 

N-2 Department Reports: 19 

a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services-April 11, 2011 .................... 19 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Bill & Sylvia Eland to Troy Police Officers 
regarding Accident Call Response ..................................................................... 19 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 19 

N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric 
Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16047-R 19 

N-6  Responses to Inquiries Made at Budget Wrap-up Session 19 

O. STUDY ITEMS 19 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 19 



 

 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 19 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 19 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 19 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 20 

Monday, June 6, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 20 
Monday, June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 20 
Monday, July 11, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 20 
Monday, July 25, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 20 
Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 20 
Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 20 
Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 20 
Monday, September 12, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 20 
Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 20 
Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 20 
Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 20 
Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 20 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 20 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 20 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 20 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 20 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Tom Lancaster – Woodside Bible Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of May 16, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Ann Comiskey 
b) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Building Safety Month – May 2011 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
Resolution A 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ........................................................ 1,500,200 
Federal Grants ....................................................................... 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ............................................................. 15,000 
Charges for Services ......................................................... 6,060,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................ 1,052,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................. 1,074,340 
Other Revenue ..................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In ................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ............................................................... 2,165,131 

 
Total              $54,591,521; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance ............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum .................................................................. 170,510 
Other General Government ............................................... 1,806,893 
Police .............................................................................. 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................ 6,081,412 
Streets ............................................................................... 5,301,924 

 
Total  $54,591,521; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $  1,146,100 
Federal Grants  ................................................................. 6,591,000 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 200,000 
Charges for Services ........................................................... 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................... 220,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................... 127,200 
Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  .............................................................. 5,768,110 

 
Total              $25,027,910; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 
Drains ............................................................................... 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Museum ................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................ 10,073,300 
Police ................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation .......................................................... 139,000 
Streets  ............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ........................................................................ 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out .................................................. 1,584,430 
 
Total .............................................................................. $25,027,910; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

Taxes .............................................................................. $4,140,180  
Charges for Services ............................................................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ................................................................... 8,000 

 
Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety-six one-
hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 
 

Major Road Fund .......................................................... $  3,066,930  
Local Road Fund ........................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund ............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................... $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund ................................................... $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................... $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................. $     356,000 
Water Supply System ................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ..................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ..................................................... $     611,044 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ..................................... $  1,881,980 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund ................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ....................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ....................................... $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ............................................... $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ...................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ...................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................... $     325,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2012/13 – 2013/14) for the General 
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Refuse Fund and Capital Operating Fund be approved based on the 
following revenues and expenditures: 
 

General                                         2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................. $28,089,000 ........... $26,826,000 
Licenses and Permits ............. 1,506,200 ............... 1,506,200 
Federal Grants ............................ 12,000 ............................. 0 
State Grants ........................... 5,301,000 ............... 5,301,000 
Contributions – Local .................. 15,000 .................... 15,000 
Charges for Services .............. 6,162,300 ............... 6,222,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ............. 1,088,000 ............... 1,088,000 
Interest and Rents .................. 1,129,340 ............... 1,139,340 
Other Revenue .......................... 724,000 .................. 746,000 
Operating Transfers – In ........ 7,072,000 ............... 4,923,000 
Re-appropriation ....................... 780,660 ............... 2,653,160 

 
Total $51,879,500 $50,420,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be six and 
fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2012 and 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

 
                                        2012/13                 2013/14 

 
Building Inspection ............. $   1,200,000 .......... $   1,210,000 
Council/Executive Admin. ....... 2,305,000 ............... 2,351,000 
Engineering ............................. 1,986,000 ............... 2,026,000 
Finance ................................... 3,835,500 ............... 3,867,000 
Fire .......................................... 4,300,000 ............... 4,386,000 
Library/Museum ......................... 174,000 .................. 177,000 
Other General Government .... 1,842,000 ............... 1,880,000 
Police .................................... 24,626,000 ............. 23,196,000 
Parks and Recreation ............. 6,203,000 ............... 6,327,000 
Streets .................................... 5,408,000 ............... 5,000,000 

 
Total .................................... $51,879,500 ........... $50,420,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................... $ 6,120,000 ............ $ 5,189,000 
Federal Grants ........................... 800,000 ............... 1,200,000 
Contributions - Local .................. 200,000 .................. 200,000 
Charges for Services ................. 288,000 .................. 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ................. 220,000 .................. 220,000 
Interest and Rents ..................... 127,200 .................. 130,000 
Operating Transfer-In ............. 1,100,000 ............... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation ..................... 2,141,691 .................. 646,459 

 
Total .................................... $10,996,891 ............. $8,973,459; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2012 and one and thirty-six one-hundredths (1.36) 
mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Executive Administration ..... $       50,000 ........... $                0 
Drains ........................................ 525,894 .................. 475,459 
Fire ............................................... 95,000 .................. 570,000 
Museum ....................................... 50,000 .................... 50,000 
Other General Government ....... 100,000 .................. 300,000 
Parks & Recreation .................... 120,000 .................. 170,000 
Police ......................................... 350,000 .................. 350,000 
Public Works .............................. 465,000 .................. 615,000 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Streets .................................... 6,913,000 ............... 6,343,000 
Operating Transfer-Out .......... 2,328,000 .................. 100,000 

 
Total ................................... $10,996,894 ............. $8,973,459; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................... $4,248,890 ............. $4,373,300 
Charges for Services ..................... 4,500 ...................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ......................... 4,000 ...................... 4,000 

 
Total ..................................... $4,257,390 ............. $4,381,800; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and six one-
hundredths (1.06) mills on the 2012 taxable valuation and one and fourteen one- hundredths 
(1.14) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,257,390 in 
2012/13 and $4,381,800 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,126,800 in 2012/13 and $3,082,750 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2012 and sixty-seven one-hundredths (0.67) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation for the 
General Debt Service Fund.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
 
OR 
 
 
Resolution B 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ........................................................ 1,500,200 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Federal Grants ....................................................................... 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 115,000 
Charges for Services ........................................................ 6,060,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................ 1,072,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................ 1,074,340 
Other Revenue .................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In ................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ............................................................... 2,610,131 

 
Total              $55,156,521; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance ............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum .................................................................. 735,510 
Other General Government .............................................. 1,806,893 
Police .............................................................................. 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ....................................................... 6,081,412 
Streets .............................................................................. 5,301,924 

 
Total  $55,156,521; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $  1,146,100 
Federal Grants  ................................................................. 6,591,000 
State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 200,000 
Charges for Services ........................................................... 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................... 220,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................... 127,200 
Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  .............................................................. 5,874,360 

 
Total              $25,134,160; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 
Drains ................................................................................ 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Library .................................................................................. 106,250 
Museum ................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................. 10,073,300 
Police ................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................... 139,000 
Streets  .............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ........................................................................ 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out .................................................. 1,584,430 

 
Total .............................................................................. $25,134,160; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

Taxes .............................................................................. $4,140,180  
Charges for Services ................................................................ 4,500 
Interest and Rents .................................................................... 8,000 

 
Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety-six one-
hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 
 

Major Road Fund .......................................................... $  3,066,930  
Local Road Fund ........................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund ............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................... $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund ................................................... $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................... $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................. $     356,000 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

Water Supply System ................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund .................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ..................................................... $     611,044 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ..................................... $  1,881,980 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ...................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ....................................... $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ............................................... $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ...................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ..................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................... $     325,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2012/13 – 2013/14) for the General 
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Refuse Fund and Capital Operating Fund be approved based on the 
following revenues and expenditures: 
 

General Fund Operating            2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................. $28,089,000 ........... $26,826,000 
Licenses and Permits ............. 1,506,200 ............... 1,506,200 
Federal Grants ............................. 12,000 ............................. 0 
State Grants ............................ 5,301,000 ............... 5,301,000 
Contributions – Local ................... 15,000 .................... 15,000 
Charges for Services .............. 6,162,300 ............... 6,222,300 
Fines and Forfeitures .............. 1,088,000 ............... 1,088,000 
Interest and Rents .................. 1,129,340 ............... 1,139,340 
Other Revenue .......................... 724,000 .................. 746,000 
Operating Transfers – In ......... 7,072,000 ............... 4,923,000 
Re-appropriation ........................ 780,660 ............... 2,653,160 

 
Total $51,879,500 $50,420,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be six and 
fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2012 and 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Building Inspection ............. $   1,200,000 .......... $   1,210,000 
Council/Executive Admin. ....... 2,305,000 ............... 2,351,000 
Engineering ............................. 1,986,000 ............... 2,026,000 
Finance ................................... 3,835,500 ............... 3,867,000 
Fire .......................................... 4,300,000 ............... 4,386,000 
Library/Museum ......................... 174,000 .................. 177,000 
Other General Government .... 1,842,000 ............... 1,880,000 
Police .................................... 24,626,000 ............. 23,196,000 
Parks and Recreation ............. 6,203,000 ............... 6,327,000 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

Streets .................................... 5,408,000 ............... 5,000,000 
 

Total ................................... $51,879,500 ........... $50,420,000; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................. $ 6,120,000 ............ $ 5,189,000 
Federal Grants .......................... 800,000 ............... 1,200,000 
Contributions - Local ................. 200,000 .................. 200,000 
Charges for Services ................. 288,000 .................. 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ................ 220,000 .................. 220,000 
Interest and Rents ..................... 127,200 .................. 130,000 
Operating Transfer-In ............. 1,100,000 ............... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation .................... 2,141,691 .................. 646,459 
 
Total ................................... $10,996,891 ............. $8,973,459; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2012 and one and thirty-six one-hundredths (1.36) 
mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Executive Administration .... $       50,000 ........... $                0 
Drains ........................................ 525,894 .................. 475,459 
Fire .............................................. 95,000 .................. 570,000 
Museum ...................................... 50,000 .................... 50,000 
Other General Government ....... 100,000 .................. 300,000 
Parks & Recreation ................... 120,000 .................. 170,000 
Police ........................................ 350,000 .................. 350,000 
Public Works ............................. 465,000 .................. 615,000 
Streets .................................... 6,913,000 ............... 6,343,000 
Operating Transfer-Out .......... 2,328,000 .................. 100,000 

 
Total ................................... $10,996,894 ............. $8,973,459; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................... $4,248,890 ............. $4,373,300 
Charges for Services ..................... 4,500 ...................... 4,500 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

Interest and Rents ......................... 4,000 ...................... 4,000 
 

Total ...................................... $4,257,390 ............. $4,381,800; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and six one-
hundredths (1.06) mills on the 2012 taxable valuation and one and fourteen one- hundredths 
(1.14) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,257,390 in 
2012/13 and $4,381,800 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,126,800 in 2012/13 and $3,082,750 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2012 and sixty-seven one-hundredths (0.67) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation for the 
General Debt Service Fund. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 2011 
Election, the following ballot question:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Public Library Operating Millage Proposal 

 
CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 0.7 MILLS FOR DEDICATED 
LIBRARY FUNDING WITH THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING 
QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 0.7 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, 
inclusive, for the dedicated purpose of operating and maintaining the library? 
0.7 mills are equal to $0.70 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, 
the additional millage levied will raise approximately $2,900,000 in 2011, the 
first year it is levied. Millage revenue would be disbursed to the City for library 
purposes.  Of this amount, state law requires the capture of approximately 
$3,383 for Local Development Finance Authority, $50,020 for Downtown 
Development Authority, and $129 for Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
purposes.  This proposal is authorized under Section 6 of Article IX of the 
Michigan Constitution.      

 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

I-5 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 
2011/12 Budget 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s (BRA) Proposed 

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed 

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority has adopted and recommends 
that City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Local Development Finance Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-8 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program – 

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and AFSCME 
for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012, 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 4 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) employees will meet the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of 
March 31, 2011; and 26 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for retirement from 
City employment as of March 31, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) employees who 
will be eligible to retire, or are within five years of eligibility, on or before March 31, 2011, 
provided that the program is economically beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of March 31, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than August 12, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a two-year collective bargaining agreement between the City 
of Troy and AFSCME for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013 as presented is hereby 
RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement; 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-9 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2010-2013 and Early 

Retirement Incentive Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, a tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and MAP for 
the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012; 2013; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 7 Michigan Association of Police (MAP) employees will meet the 
eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of February 28, 2011; and 11 Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for 
retirement from City employment as of February 28, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the 
Michigan Association of Police (MAP) employees who will be eligible to retire, or are within five 
years of eligibility, on or before February 28, 2011, provided that the program is economically 
beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of February 28, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than August 12, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 17 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a three-year collective bargaining agreement between the 
City of Troy and MAP for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013 as presented is hereby 
RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement; 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
b) Special City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
proclamations: 
 
a) Ann Comiskey 
b) Building Safety Month – May 2011 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 18 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 2011 
Election, the following ballot questions:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Dedicated Operational 

Millage Proposal as Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 

CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 1.0 MILLS FOR DEDICATED 
ROAD MAINTENANCE AND SNOW PLOWING PURPOSES WITH THE 
SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 1.0 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, for the 
purpose of providing dedicated funding for road maintenance and snow 
plowing operations? 1.0 mills are equal to $1.00 on each $1,000.00 of 
taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will raise 
approximately $4,448,750 in 2011, the first year it is levied.  Millage revenue 
would be disbursed to the City for road purposes.  Of this amount, state law 
requires the capture of approximately $4,833 for Local Development Finance 
Authority, $71,457 for the Downtown Development Authority and $185 for the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.   This proposal is authorized under 
Section 6 of Article IX of the Michigan Constitution. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 19 - 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Planning Commission-Draft-April 26, 2011 
 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services-April 11, 2011 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Bill & Sylvia Eland to Troy Police Officers regarding Accident 

Call Response 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric 

Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16047-R 
 
N-6  Responses to Inquiries Made at Budget Wrap-up Session 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 16, 2011 
 

- 20 - 

 
SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Monday, June 6, 2011 ...................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 20, 2011 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 11, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 25, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 8, 2011 .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 22, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 29, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 12, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 26, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 3, 2011 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 17, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

ANN COMISKEY 
 
WHEREAS, Long-time Troy resident Ann Comiskey has built a solid reputation as the Executive Director of the Troy 
Community Coalition for the past 9 years, as well as a committed volunteer, serving many organizations in our community 
with an enthusiasm and dedication that is respected by all who know her; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ann began her career 38 years ago with the State of Michigan working for the Department of Social Services in 
Wayne County.  As a caseworker she offered supportive services to adults on public assistance.  Her social services work 
eventually brought her to Highland Park where she worked for over 23 years in the Adult & Alternative Education arena; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 2002 Ann was hired as the Executive Director of the Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug and 
Alcohol Abuse and the Coalition of Healthy Communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ann’s work with the Troy Community Coalition included developing and implementing prevention strategies 
based on our community’s needs; influencing and promoting community norms to those supporting a lifestyle free from the 
abuse of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs through environmental strategies affecting the total population; and  
   
WHEREAS, Ann is one of 28 Leader/Mentors for the Community Anti-Drug Coalitions of America (CADCA) Institute and 
provides coalition “personal coaching” sessions at CADCA national conferences, and is currently the Co Chair of the 
Prevention Coalition of Southeast Michigan (PREVCO), a member of the Advisory Council of the State Incentive Grant (SIG) 
and chair of the Coalition Workgroup; and 
 
WHEREAS, As a committed volunteer, Ann has served as the board secretary of the Troy Chamber of Commerce, a 
Lifetime Member of the Troy Women’s Association, and advisory board member of the Michigan Nonprofit Association.    She 
is a Eucharistic Minister and member of the Mission’s committee at St. Anastasia Catholic Church; and   
 
WHEREAS, One of the most important aspects in Ann’s life is her family, including her husband of 42 years Pat, daughter 
Jennifer, son-in-law John and beautiful granddaughter Riley Ann who all are delighted that she is finally retiring to spend 
more time with her family and care for precious granddaughter Riley;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Ann Comiskey for her selfless and tireless service and her many contributions to the betterment of the 
Community; and  

BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City Management and the 
Citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health, happiness and continued success in all future 
endeavors to Ann during her retirement years.  Her influence and contributions will remain alive in our hearts and will impact 
each of us as we journey into the future. 

 
Presented this 16th day of May 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-03a



bartholotl
Text Box
C-1b & J-03b

bartholotl
Text Box

bartholotl
Text Box



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 11, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
    
    
SUBJECT: Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget  
 
 
Attached is resolution (a) to formally adopt both the 2011/12 annual City budget and the 3-year 
budget, per discussions at special City Council meetings on April 25, May 2 and May 9, 2011. 
 
The budget resolution reflects a total millage rate of 9.49 in 2011/12, 9.59 in 2012/13 and 9.67 in 
2013/14.  Final millage rate requirements can be summarized as follows: 

 
             2011/12         2012/13         2013/14 
 
General Operating  6.50  6.50  6.50 
Capital   1.53  1.53  1.36 
Refuse   0.96  1.06  1.14 
Debt    0.50  0.50  0.67 
 
Total Millage Rate  9.49  9.59  9.67 
 
Resolution (b) is also attached, which contains three months funding for the library in 2011/12. 
 
Final inserts reflecting changes made to the proposed budget documents will be prepared and 
submitted to City Council at the first meeting in July. 
 
It is recommended that City Council postpone approval the 2011/12 annual City budget and the 3-
year budget until a decision is made on dedicated library millage questions later in the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\AGENDA\2011\05.16.11 – Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
E-01



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   

DATE: May 12, 2011 
SUBJECT: Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure    

 
 
City Council directed the preparation of ballot language for continued library funding at its 

May 9, 2011 City Council meeting.  The direction was to provide language for a 0.70 mill levy for 
dedicated library purposes, which would be placed on an August 2, 2011 ballot.  Following City 
Council’s direction, the following ballot question is proposed for your review:    

 
CITY OF TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 

 
CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 0.7 MILLS FOR 
DEDICATED LIBRARY FUNDING WITH THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF 
THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 
 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 0.7 mills against all taxable 
property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, inclusive, for the 
dedicated purpose of operating and maintaining the library? 0.7 mills are equal to 
$0.70 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional millage 
levied will raise approximately $2,900,000 in 2011, the first year it is levied. 
Millage revenue would be disbursed to the City for library purposes.  Of this 
amount, state law requires the capture of approximately $3,383 for Local 
Development Finance Authority, $50,020 for Downtown Development Authority, 
and $129 for Brownfield Redevelopment Authority purposes.  This proposal is 
authorized under Section 6 of Article IX of the Michigan Constitution.      
 

Yes: __________    No:  ___________ 
 
This language has been reviewed by legal counsel and the Attorney General’s Office.  If 

approved by City Council, the language would need to be certified to the Oakland County Clerk by 
May 23, 2011 for an August 2, 2011 election.  Additionally, City Council also needs to officially call 
the August election.  A resolution has been provided for your review.   

City Council would also need to take action to provide for the temporary or bridge funding in 
the budget adoption process, in order to keep the library operational until the results of the August 
election are released.  It is estimated that this amount will be $671,250.  Budget adoption (Item E-1) 
should be postponed until after your consideration of this item.  At that point, Council has the option 
to adopt Budget Resolution B, which incorporates funding to sustain the library should Council 
decide to call the special election. This amendment is required, since the current budget does not 
provide for operation and maintenance beyond June 30, 2011.  If the ballot question is approved, 
and the additional millage is collected in the winter tax bills, then this money could be reimbursed to 
the general fund.   

bartholotl
Text Box
I-04



A. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and Three-Year Budget 

(2012/13 – 2013/14) with Three Month Library Appropriation 
 
 

(b) WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget 
for the ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year 
budget;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, 
operating transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are 
anticipated: 
 
 

Taxes ............................................................................. $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ........................................................ 1,500,200 
Federal Grants ........................................................................ 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ............................................................ 115,000 
Charges for Services ......................................................... 6,060,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ......................................................... 1,072,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................. 1,074,340 
Other Revenue ..................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In .................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ................................................................ 2,610,131 
  
Total              $55,156,521; and  

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall 
be six and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating 
Fund: 
 

 
Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance .............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum ................................................................... 735,510 
Other General Government ............................................... 1,806,893 



Police ............................................................................... 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................ 6,081,412 
Streets ............................................................................... 5,301,924 
 
Total  $55,156,521; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues 
of the Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................. $  1,146,100 
Federal Grants  .................................................................. 6,591,000 
State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ............................................................ 200,000 
Charges for Services ............................................................ 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ............................................................ 220,000 
Interest and Rents ................................................................ 127,200 
Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  ............................................................... 5,874,360 
 
Total              $25,134,160; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and 
fifty-three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 
Drains ................................................................................ 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Library .................................................................................. 106,250 
Museum .................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................. 10,073,300 
Police .................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................... 139,000 
Streets  .............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ......................................................................... 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out ................................................... 1,584,430 
 
Total .............................................................................. $25,134,160; and 
 
 
 
 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund 
are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................... $4,140,180  
Charges for Services ................................................................ 4,500 
Interest and Rents .................................................................... 8,000 

  
Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety - 
six one-hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be 
appropriated $3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths 
(0.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 

  
Major Road Fund ........................................................... $  3,066,930  
Local Road Fund ........................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund .............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................... $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund ................................................... $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................... $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................. $     356,000 
Water Supply System .................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ..................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ...................................................... $     611,044 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ...................................... $  1,881,980 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund ................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ....................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ........................................ $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ................................................ $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ....................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ...................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund ..................................... $     325,000; and 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2012/13 – 2013/14) for the 
General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Refuse Fund and Capital Operating Fund be 
approved based on the following revenues and expenditures: 
 

General Fund Operating            2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................. $28,089,000 ........... $26,826,000 
Licenses and Permits ............. 1,506,200 ............... 1,506,200 
Federal Grants ............................. 12,000 ............................. 0  
State Grants ........................... 5,301,000 ............... 5,301,000 
Contributions – Local ................... 15,000 .................... 15,000 
Charges for Services .............. 6,162,300 ............... 6,222,300 
Fines and Forfeitures .............. 1,088,000 ............... 1,088,000 
Interest and Rents .................. 1,129,340 ............... 1,139,340 
Other Revenue .......................... 724,000 .................. 746,000 
Operating Transfers – In ......... 7,072,000 ............... 4,923,000 
Re-appropriation ........................ 780,660 ............... 2,653,160 
 
Total $51,879,500 $50,420,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be 
six and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2012 and 2013 taxable valuation; and  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts 
from the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General 
Operating Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Building Inspection ............ $   1,200,000 .......... $   1,210,000 
Council/Executive Admin. ....... 2,305,000 ............... 2,351,000 
Engineering ............................ 1,986,000 ............... 2,026,000 
Finance ................................... 3,835,500 ............... 3,867,000 
Fire ......................................... 4,300,000 ............... 4,386,000 
Library/Museum ......................... 174,000 .................. 177,000 
Other General Government .... 1,842,000 ............... 1,880,000 
Police .................................... 24,626,000 ............. 23,196,000 
Parks and Recreation ............. 6,203,000 ............... 6,327,000 
Streets .................................... 5,408,000 ............... 5,000,000 
 
Total ................................... $51,879,500 ........... $50,420,000; and 

 
 
 
 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues 
of the Capital Fund are anticipated: 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................... $ 6,120,000 ............ $ 5,189,000 
Federal Grants ........................... 800,000 ............... 1,200,000 
Contributions - Local .................. 200,000 .................. 200,000 
Charges for Services ................. 288,000 .................. 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ................. 220,000 .................. 220,000 
Interest and Rents ..................... 127,200 .................. 130,000 
Operating Transfer-In ............. 1,100,000 ............... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation ..................... 2,141,691 .................. 646,459 
 
Total ................................... $10,996,891 ............. $8,973,459; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and 
fifty-three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2012 and one and thirty-six one-
hundredths (1.36) 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts 
from the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Executive Administration .... $       50,000 ........... $                0 
Drains ........................................ 525,894 .................. 475,459 
Fire .............................................. 95,000 .................. 570,000 
Museum ....................................... 50,000 .................... 50,000 
Other General Government ....... 100,000 .................. 300,000 
Parks & Recreation .................... 120,000 .................. 170,000 
Police ......................................... 350,000 .................. 350,000 
Public Works .............................. 465,000 .................. 615,000 
Streets .................................... 6,913,000 ............... 6,343,000 
Operating Transfer-Out .......... 2,328,000 .................. 100,000 
 
Total ................................... $10,996,894 ............. $8,973,459; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund 
are anticipated: 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................... $4,248,890 ............. $4,373,300 
Charges for Services ..................... 4,500 ...................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ......................... 4,000 ...................... 4,000 
 
Total ..................................... $4,257,390 ............. $4,381,800; and  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and 
six one-hundredths (1.06) mills on the 2012 taxable valuation and one and fourteen 
one- hundredths (1.14) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,257,390 
in 2012/13 and $4,381,800 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be 
appropriated $3,126,800 in 2012/13 and $3,082,750 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths 
(0.50) mills on the 2012 and sixty seven one-hundredths (0.67) mills on the 2013 
taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund.  
 
Yes:   
No:  
 
 
 



bartholotl
Text Box
I-05































 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 10, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
    
SUBJECT: Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed  

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
 
The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) recommended approval of their proposed 
2011/12 budget at their May 09, 2011 special meeting.  City Management recommends that City 
Council approve the BRA’s proposed 2011/12 budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MM/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\05.16.11 – Approval of the BRA 2011-12 Budget 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-06



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 12, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
    
SUBJECT: Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed  

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
 
The Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) recommended approval of their proposed 
2011/12 budget at their May 10, 2011 meeting.  City Management recommends that City Council 
approve the LDFA’s proposed 2011/12 budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MM/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\05.16.11 – Approval of the LDFA 2011-12 Budget 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-07



REVENUE
Property Tax $92,298
Fund Balance Appropriation 200,000

$292,298

EXPENDITURES
Automation Alley - Operations 55,380
Automation Alley  - Building Unrestricted 171,918
Administrative Services 50,000
Marketing Costs 15,000

$292,298

Base 
Taxable 
Value

2011 
Taxable 
Value

2011 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value

Commercial Personal PRE 1,431,000 1,483,150 52,150
Industrial Personal PRE 0 3,889,250 3,889,250
Real Non-H 13,016,380 13,907,950 891,570

Total Taxable Values 14,447,380 19,280,350 4,832,970

Millage 
Rates County City - 

Debt
Transporta

tion

* 1/2 
(School 
Op - 12)

1/2 (ISD) Community 
College

Hold 
Harmless Total

CP PRE 4.6461 8.9000 0.5900 3.0000 1.6845 1.5844 0.0000 20.4050
IP PRE 4.6461 8.9000 0.5900 1.6845 1.5844 0.0000 17.4050
IR Non H 4.6461 8.9000 0.5900 9.0000 1.6845 1.5844 0.0000 26.4050

* 1/2 School Operating minus 12 mills only for Comm Personal Property, Real is 1/2 School Operating 

Captured 
Tax Yield

Total 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value

Total 
Captured 

Mills

Total 
Captured 

Taxes

Commercial Personal PRE 52,150 20.4050 1,064.12
Industrial Personal PRE 3,889,250 17.4050 67,692.40
Industrial Real Non-H 891,570 26.4050 23,541.91

Total 4,832,970 92,298.42

CAPTURED TAXABLE VALUE
2011 - 2012

CITY OF TROY

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY
2011 - 2012

PROPOSED BUDGET



PES/jp/AGENDA ITEMS/ PS11M.029 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program –AFSCME 2011-05-10 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  May 10, 2011 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early 

Retirement Incentive Program – American Federation of State, county 
and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City Management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement between 
the City of Troy and AFSCME for a successor collective bargaining agreement from July 1, 
2011 through June 30, 2013 and the offering of the Early Retirement Incentive Program 
(ERIP) for AFSCME employees. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 2, 2011, the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) ratified a tentative agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME for a two-
year successor collective bargaining agreement that will replace the contract that will expire 
June 30, 2011.  As directed by City Council, this agreement achieves a 10% savings  
calculated on payroll costs that include base pay, pension, workers compensation and 
FICA.  This tentative agreement incorporates a 5% reduction in wages, the equivalent of a 
5% wage decrease in the form of unpaid furlough days, and 1% savings in health insurance.  
Thus, an 11.27% savings is achieved. 
 
This agreement adds three cost-saving protocols to the health insurance plan for current 
employees:  mandatory generic, step therapy and prior authorization.  Additionally, it 
eliminates the requirement that summer seasonal employees be laid off before the layoff of 
bargaining unit members in that division.  Attached is a summary of the tentative agreement 
and the resultant savings calculation. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-08



 

PES/jp/AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.029 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program – AFSCME 2011-05-10 

 

AGENDA ITEM-Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program 
- AFSCME  
Page Two 
 
 
 
The last component of the tentative agreement is the offering of an Early Retirement 
Incentive Program (ERIP).  A description of the program recommended by city  
administration and the actuarial valuation are attached.  The proposed program is consistent 
with the ERIP previously offered to the TFSOA and Classified and Exempt employees.  Two 
options would be offered:  a cash incentive of $1,000 per complete year of credited 
retirement service with the City of Troy, or the option to convert from a Defined Contribution 
Pension Plan to a Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  This Early Retirement Incentive Program 
must be cost neutral.  The DC to DB Program would be funded directly from the members’ 
DC accounts.  The cost associated with the cash incentive program will be covered by the 
department.   
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 



G:Negotiations\AFSCME\2011\TA Summary 2011-04-28 
 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and AFSCME 

2011-2013 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
 
 
Contract Duration  Two years 
 
Pay Reduction   Wages reduced 5% effective upon ratification 
 
Furlough Days   Continued use of 104 hours unpaid furlough time per year 
 
Health Insurance Three protocols added to reduce the cost of prescription drug 

coverage:  mandatory generic, prior authorization and step 
therapy  

 
Layoffs and Recall Eliminated the requirement that seasonal employees hired for four 

months during the summer be laid off before the layoff of 
bargaining unit members in that division. 

 
Miscellaneous:  a. Early Retirement Incentive Plan (ERIP) to be offered to  
     AFSCME members 
    b. Parties agree to attempt to mutually select an arbitrator  
     prior to submitting the grievance to the American   
     Arbitration Association (thereby saving the filing fee)  

 
 



AFSCME NEGOTIATIONS ‐ Contract Expiring 6/30/2011

PROPOSED SETTLEMENT SAVINGS

(As % of Payroll)

ISSUE

ANNUAL 

SAVINGS

5.0% Pay Reduction $236,280

104 Hours Unpaid Furlough Time $219,932

Health Insurance $39,481

Total Annual Savings $495,693

Savings as Percent of Base Pay +                             

Rollups [Pension, Work. Comp., FICA]                     

($4,398,624)  11.27%

Savings as                                                           

Percent of Base Pay Only ($3,546,837)  13.98%

G:Negotiations/AFSCME/2011/Negot Settlement Savings 2011‐05‐04



 

1 
G:ERIP\AFSCME\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-04-28 

 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM  2011 
AFSCME Employees 

 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
The City of Troy is implementing an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) in the form of 
two options, a cash incentive or a DC to DB conversion, in order to reduce personnel costs to 
accommodate budget constraints.  The Program is being offered to eligible employees if the 
employee signs a Letter of Understanding with the City of Troy and, in the case of a union 
employee, that union agrees to the terms and conditions of the Program.  Participation in the 
Program is entirely voluntary.  Interested eligible employees in either the DB Pension Plan or the 
DC Pension Plan may elect to participate, but can only select one of the available options.  
Participating employees must retire on or before the date specified in the Plan. 
 
 
INCENTIVE OPTIONS:   
 
Cash Incentive 
Eligible employees in either the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect 
to receive a cash incentive that is equal to $1,000 for each actual complete year of credited 
service with the City of Troy as of March 31, 2011.  The cash incentive will be issued not later 
than three weeks after the employees’ designated retirement date.  The number of years for 
which the cash incentive is made shall not include years of service granted for prior government 
service from an employer other than the City of Troy.   
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan, the incentive will not be 
included in any computation of Final Average Compensation (FAC) under any provisions of the 
Retirement System.  Both the City and the employee will make the required contributions to the 
plan. 
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan, the employee and 
the City of Troy will each contribute their appropriate percentage to the plan.   
 
DC to DB Conversion 
Eligible employees in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect to transfer their total 
accumulated balance (including all employee contributions and interest thereon) to the City of 
Troy Employees Retirement System-Defined Benefit Plan.  Their pension will be based solely on 
the value of their accumulated DC account balance at the date of transfer as determined by the 
Retirement System’s actuary.   
 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Employees who are eligible to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program will be sent 
notification following approval of the program by City Council.  The notice will include the 
Early Retirement Incentive Program Voluntary Resignation Agreement and Release of Claims 
form, a Receipt form and a Waiver of Review Period form.  Employees will have a minimum of 



 

2 
G:ERIP\AFSCME\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-04-28 

 

45 days in which to consider the Release in order to seek counsel regarding their rights.  If the 
employee chooses to waive the 45-day review period, he/she must submit the signed Waiver.  
Employees who elect to participate in the Program must submit the signed Release not later than 
the end of the window period and will have seven (7) days after signing to revoke their decision.  
Retirement dates are subject to approval, and retirement must occur not later than August 12, 
2011.   
 
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS:   
 
The Program will be available to AFSCME employees who meet the age and service 
requirements for normal or early retirement as of March 31, 2011, or are within five years of 
eligibility, as defined by the Employee Retirement System Ordinance or by the respective 
collective bargaining agreement.  These eligibility requirements are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EFFECTIVE DATES: 
 

Window Period (45-days minimum): May 17, 2011 through July 1, 2011 
 
Revocation Period Ends (7 days):  July 8, 2011 

 
Retirement Not Later Than:  August 12, 2011 

 
GROUP A 
Regular Retirement 
 

Age 50 with 27 years of service; or 
Age 60 with 10 years of service 

 
Early Retirement  

Age 55 with 10 years of service 
 
 
GROUP B 

Those within five (5) years of eligibility as stated above 



 
 
 
 
 
April 15, 2011 
 
 
 
 
CONFIDENTIAL 
 
Mr. John Lamerato 
Assistant City Manager - Finance 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Re: A Supplemental Valuation of the Effect of a Proposed Early Retirement Incentive 

Plan (ERIP) for the City of Troy-AFSCME 
 
Dear Mr. Lamerato: 
 
This report presents the results of a supplemental valuation of the potential impact of a proposed Early 
Retirement Incentive Plan on the City of Troy Employees Retirement System (ERS) and Retiree 
Health Plan.  A summary of the Early Retirement Incentive Plan provisions is shown on the following 
page.   
 

Except where indicated, this valuation was based on the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the 
most recent ERS and Other Postemployment Benefits annual actuarial valuations.   
 

Both of the undersigned are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meet the 
Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion 
contained herein. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brad Armstrong, ASA, MAAA 
 
 
 
Randall J. Dziubek, ASA, MAAA 
 
BLA/RJD:mrb 
Enclosures 



April 15, 2011  -1-

 

CITY OF TROY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-AFSCME 
EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 

 
ERIP  

Eligibility: Member is eligible or within five years of eligibility for regular or early retirement 
as of March 31, 2011.  Members of both the ERS and the Defined Contribution Plan (DC) are 
eligible for the ERIP. 

 
Benefits provided by the ERIP: 

• ERS Members – Immediate commencement of unreduced retirement benefit based on 
accrued service as of March 31, 2011.  

• ERS and DC Members - Immediate commencement of retiree health benefits based on 
accrued service as of March 31, 2011. 

• ERS and DC Members – All eligible members as of March 31, 2011 will receive a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each complete year of service as of the same date.  These 
lump sums will not be funded by the Retirement System.  In the case of DC members, 
the eligibility for the lump sum is contingent on not converting their DC balance to a 
DB annuity under the Retirement System.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



April 15, 2011  -2-

 

 
 

CITY OF TROY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-AFSCME 
EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 
 
DATA PROVIDED TO THE ACTUARY:   The City provided a listing of all of the active members that are 
believed to be eligible for the ERIP.  The listing was reviewed for reasonableness, but was not audited 
by the actuary.  The listing contained credited service projected to March 31, 2011.   
 
A summary of individuals deemed eligible for the ERIP and included in this report is shown below:  
 

 
 

Number Total
Group Count Annual Payroll

ERS
NR Eligible -        -                    
ER Eligible 4            237,702    $       58.2 yrs. 19.5 yrs. 19.5 yrs.
Eligible within 5 yrs. 6            354,520             52.3 21.0 21.0
Total ERS 10          592,222    $       54.7 yrs. 20.4 yrs. 20.4 yrs.

DC Plan
NR Eligible 4            242,375    $       57.0 yrs. 31.6 yrs. 31.6 yrs.
ER Eligible 2            107,102             56.7 16.3 16.3
Eligible within 5 yrs. 14          801,896             53.0 14.3 14.3
Total DC Plan 20          1,151,373    $    54.2 yrs. 17.9 yrs. 17.9 yrs.

Data as of March 31, 2011
Average Average Service

Age Benefit Eligibility

 
  



April 15, 2011  -3-

 

 
 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 
 
The estimated impact of the proposed ERIP as of March 31, 2011 is shown below, assuming 100% of 
eligible members retire.  The “Retiree Health” results represent the impact of immediate retirement for 
both ERS and DC Plan members. 
  
Annual contribution results shown below were determined by amortizing the increase in the present 
value of benefits over a five-year period as a level percent of pay.  These contribution results are not 
the expected increases in the Annual Required Contributions (ARC) that will be determined in the 
actuarial valuations following the ERIP, but are a good representation of the expected overall costs of 
the ERIP if paid off over a five-year period.  
 
 

 
Annual Contribution

Required to Amortize 
PV Increase Over 5 Years

Pension 316,961$      69,199$         
Retiree Health 1,012,182     220,981         

Sub-Total 1,329,143$   290,180$       
$1,000 x Service * 372,000        NA

Total 1,701,143$   290,180$       

Reduced Member DB Contributions 67,271$        14,687$         

Increased Benefits Plus Reduced
Member DB Contributions 1,768,414$   304,867$       

Increase in 
Present Value (PV)

 of Projected Benefits

 
* The $1,000 x Service amounts shown above are based on accrued service as of March 31, 2011.  These lump sum 

payments will not be funded by the Retirement System. The cost to amortize over 5 years is not shown since it is 
assumed these payments will be made immediately following the retirement of participating members.  

 
 

Increase in Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for Retiree Health Benefits 
 
The Annual Required Contribution for retiree health benefits is currently based on the Entry-Age 
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The expected increase in the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
for retiree health benefits under the EAN cost method due to the proposed ERIP is $1,833,516.  Under 
current methods, 30-year amortization of the increase in the AAL under the EAN cost method will be 
included in the calculation of the ARC in the valuation following the ERIP. 

 

 
  



April 15, 2011  -4-

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 
 
The chart below illustrates the total expected cost of the additional pension and retiree health benefits 
provided under the ERIP alternatives if spread over a five year period. These results do not reflect the 
potential savings associated with the ERIP due to decreased payroll and fringe benefit costs and other 
factors. For an overall measure of the estimated cost/savings associated with the ERIP, the costs shown 
below should be combined with any expected savings due to decreased payroll and other factors.  If the 
expected savings due to these factors over the next five years is equal to the costs shown below, the 
ERIP can be considered cost neutral to the City. 
 
 
 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

1 2 3 4 5 6

A
nn

ua
l 

C
os

t

Year

Estimated Annual Cost of ERIP Alternatives Amortized Over 5 Years

 
 
 

The estimated cost of the $1,000 x service benefit is shown in Year 1.  The 5-year amortization of 
additional costs under the ERIP is shown in Years 2-6.  Year 1 represents the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2011. We assumed that 50% of the eligible DC Plan members will elect to convert their DC 
balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System thereby forgoing any lump sum payment. 



April 15, 2011  -5-

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 
 
It is likely that less than 100% of eligible members will choose to retire under this ERIP.  In the table 
below, we show the estimated increase in the present value of benefits and the 5-year amortization 
payment of these increases based on various election percentages (please refer to Comment 4 on page 
6).  Each of the sets of results shown assume 50% of the eligible DC Plan members will elect to 
convert their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System thereby forgoing any lump sum 
payment. 
 

 
Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed

to Retire Under the Program
100% 75% 50% 25%

Number Assumed to Retire from ERS 10                 8                   5                   3                 
Number Assumed to Retire from DC Plan 20                 15                 10                 5                 

Increase in PV of Benefits Plus Reduced 
Member DB Contributions

Pension 316,961$      237,721$      158,481$      79,240$      
Retiree Health 1,012,182     759,137        506,091        253,046      
$1,000 x Service 372,000        279,000        186,000        93,000        
Reduced Member DB Contributions 67,271          50,453          33,636          16,818        

Total 1,768,414$   1,326,311$   884,208$      442,104$    

5-Year Amortization of Above (In addition 
to One-Time Cost of $1,000 x Service)

Pension 69,199$        51,899$        34,600$        17,300$      
Retiree Health 220,981        165,736        110,491        55,245        
Reduced Member DB Contributions 14,687          11,015          7,344            3,672          

Total 304,867$      228,650$      152,435$      76,217$       
 

 
Please see the Comments on pages 6 and 7 for important information essential to understanding this 
report. 

  



April 15, 2011  -6-

 

COMMENTS 
 
 
Comment 1:  This report is based on an assumption that individuals reported by the City as eligible for 
the ERIP, elect the ERIP and then retire on March 31, 2011.  Data used for this report was based on the 
data provided by the City regarding eligible members, service as of March 31, 2011.  Pay data 
provided for the December 31, 2009 annual actuarial valuation of the ERS was used to estimate 
pensionable earnings at retirement.  
 
 
Comment 2:  This report is based on the data and assumptions noted above and the proposed ERIP 
provisions shown on page 1.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are 
unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important and relevant plan 
provisions are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations were made, you 
should contact the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the report.   
 
 
Comment 3:  This report shows the potential impact of the proposed ERIP on ERS pension and retiree 
health care costs as of March 31, 2011.  The non-retirement costs/savings in other areas (payroll 
savings, fringe benefit savings, employer contributions to new hire defined contribution accounts, etc.) 
are not included in this report.  
 
 
Comment 4:  The cost of the proposed ERIP has been developed assuming that all of the individuals 
shown in this report are eligible for the ERIP and will elect to retire on March 31, 2011.  Please be 
aware that the cost of the ERIP will vary for each individual member.  For example, if half of the 
eligible employees elect to retire, and these employees are the ones who would benefit most from the 
incentive, the cost would be more than 50% of the maximum (100% retire) cost shown in this report.  
In other words, in the examples of 75%, 50%, and 25% election percentages on page 5, the cost would 
be increased if the employees electing to retire are the employees who would benefit most from the 
proposal. 
 
 
Comment 5:  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommended practice for 
evaluating the use of early retirement incentives has been included in the Appendix of this report.  The 
GFOA recommends the use of a short amortization period (such as 3-5 years) to finance the 
incremental cost of an early retirement incentive plan.  Since savings are typically realized over a short 
period, the costs should also be recognized over a similar period.  Regardless of the time period 
selected for funding, we recommend that policy makers carefully consider the 5 year results shown in 
this correspondence in the decision making process.  
 
 
Comment 6:  The calculations are based upon assumptions regarding future events, which may or may 
not materialize.  They are also based upon present and proposed plan provisions that are outlined in the 
report.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are unreasonable, that the 
plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions relevant to this proposal are 
not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations were made, you should contact 
the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the report. 



April 15, 2011  -7-

 

COMMENTS  
 
 
 
Comment 7:  If you have reason to believe that the information provided in this report is inaccurate, or 
is in any way incomplete, or if you need further information in order to make an informed decision on 
the subject matter of this report, please contact the authors of the report prior to making such decision. 
 
 
Comment 8:  No statement in this report is intended to be interpreted as a recommendation in favor of 
the changes, or in opposition to them. 
 
 
Comment 9:  This report is intended to describe the financial effect of the proposed plan changes on 
the retirement system. Except as otherwise noted, potential effects on other benefit plans were not 
considered. 
 
Comment 10: The reader of this report should keep in mind that actuarial calculations are 
mathematical estimates based on current data and assumptions about future events (which may or may 
not materialize).  Please note that actuarial calculations can and do vary from one valuation year to the 
next, sometimes significantly if the group valued is very small (less than 30 lives).  As a result, the cost 
impact of a benefit change may fluctuate over time, as the demographics of the group changes. 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 
 



 

April 15, 2011  -8-

 

 

 
 

GFOA Recommended Practice 
 

Evaluating Use of Early Retirement Incentives - 2004 
 
Background.  Governments occasionally offer early retirement incentives (ERIs)1 to employees as a 
strategy to reduce payroll costs or stimulate short-term turnover among staff.  ERIs are temporary, 
offered during a window that usually covers a period of months.  They increase the economic value of 
the standard retirement benefit. Historically, ERIs rarely have succeeded, since costs are often greater 
than initially anticipated by the government offering the incentive, and savings are lower than 
projected. 
 
Recommendation.  GFOA recommends that governments exercise extreme caution if considering 
ERIs.  Governments should take several actions prior to the decision to offer an ERI in terms of (1) 
goal-setting, (2) cost/benefit analysis, and (3) budgetary analysis.  Governments should also develop an 
implementation plan. 
 

1.  Goal-Setting for ERIs 
 
Governments should be explicit in setting documented goals for the ERI.  Goals can be financial in 
nature, such as realizing permanent efficiencies in staffing or achieving budgetary objectives.  ERIs 
can also be designed to achieve human resource goals, such as creating vacancies that allow for 
additional promotion opportunities and allowing management to bring in new staff.  Any ERI goals 
should not conflict with other retirement plan goals (e.g., features to reduce turnover or increase 
retention). 
 
An explicit statement of goals is needed to judge the ultimate success of the initiative and to develop 
performance measures.  Further, having a statement of goals promotes transparency.  Inappropriate 
goals such as rewarding a select group of staff should be explicitly rejected.  Potential conflicts of 
interest among decision-makers who design an ERI should be monitored closely, since any self-dealing 
is costly and could harm the long-term credibility of the government entity. 
 

2.  Cost/benefit analysis 
 
In judging whether an ERI should be offered, governments should assess the potential costs and 
benefits of ERI proposals, and the cost/benefit analysis should be linked to the goals of the ERI.  For 
example, if a government sets a financial goal of obtaining long-term staffing efficiencies, then an 

                                                 
1 The scope of this recommended practice does not cover deferred retirement option plans (DROP) or partial lump-sum 
option plans (PLOP), which often promote employee retention.  The CORBA Committee may address this issue separately. 



 

April 15, 2011  -9-

 

independent cost/benefit analysis should determine whether the ERI will actually bring about such  
 
staffing efficiencies.  A cost/benefit analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account 
direct and indirect impacts, such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and 
additional contractor costs.  In addition, it should take into account the effect upon both the plan 
sponsor and the pension fund (if the pension fund is a separate organization).  Governments should 
retain an actuary to assist in conducting a cost/benefit analysis. 
 
Material changes to the ERI proposal during the legislative process should trigger adjustments to the 
cost/benefit and budgetary analyses. 
 
Regarding financially-driven ERIs, a cost/benefit analysis should compare long-term benefits and costs 
against the “default” scenario of a hiring freeze.  Most financially-driven ERIs project financial 
benefits based on payroll savings related to staff departures. However, any such savings should be 
discounted, because a hiring freeze also creates payroll savings (owing to the normal rate of staff 
departures).  Thus, the ERI benefit is limited to the marginal increase in staff departures attributable to 
the ERI.  Governments that attribute all staff departures to an ERI would over-state the ERI benefit, 
thus distorting the cost/benefit analysis. 
 
Financially-driven ERIs may also obtain savings by replacing highly compensated staff with lower-
paid staff.  Analysis of such ERIs must take into account the fact that newly hired staff tend to 
experience faster salary increases than other employees. 
 
If early retirement incentives are offered, they should be offered very infrequently and without a 
predictable schedule to avoid the expectation that another ERI will be offered.  Such an expectation 
would distort normal employee retirement patterns.   
 
The incremental costs of an ERI should be amortized over a short-term payback period, such as three 
to five years.  This payback period should match the period in which the savings are realized.  To 
calculate the incremental costs of an ERI, governments should conduct an actuarial analysis that 
discloses the present value of the liabilities associated with an ERI.  Governments that have over-
funded pension plans should avoid allocating any actuarial surplus to finance the incremental costs of 
the ERI.   
 

3. Budgetary considerations 
 
In order to develop accurate budgetary estimates for the ERI, it is necessary to estimate the incremental 
cost of the ERI, which will vary according to the level of employee participation.  Any budgetary 
analysis should project multiple scenarios for employee participation levels. 
 
A budgetary analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account direct and indirect impacts, 
such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and additional contractor costs.   
 
Because a collective bargaining agreement may affect potential ERI costs and benefits, it should be 
reviewed prior to developing budgetary estimates.   
  



 

April 15, 2011  -10-

 

4. Implementation considerations 
 
If implementing an ERI, at a minimum, governments should take into account the following points: 
 

• A communication plan is desirable to help employees understand the ERI in the context 
of overall retirement planning; 

 
• It may be necessary to gain input from collective bargaining units; 
 
• Governments should consider the impact upon service delivery after employees retire, 

with identification of critical personnel whose services must be maintained; 
 
• The duration of the window should take into account the ability of retirement staff to 

manage retirement application workloads, among other factors; and 
 
• Performance measures should be used to ensure ERI goals are met.  For financially-

driven ERIs, governments should track and report direct and indirect costs and benefits to 
determine if goals are met, such as for vacancies and contract costs. 

 
 
 
References:   
 
A Primer on Early Retirement Incentives, GFOA, 2004. 
 
 
Approved by the GFOA Executive Board, October 15, 2004. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

PES/jp/AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.028 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program –MAP 2011-05-10 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  May 10, 2011 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Contract Ratification - Michigan Association of Police 

(MAP) 2010-2013 and Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Association of Police (MAP) for a three-year successor 
collective bargaining agreement that will replace the contract that expired June 30, 2010.  
City management further supports and recommends approval to offer the Early Retirement 
Incentive Program (ERIP) to MAP employees. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 5, 2011, the Michigan Association of Police (representing the City of Troy Clerical 
and Non-Sworn Police Personnel) ratified a tentative agreement between the City of Troy 
and MAP for a three-year successor collective bargaining agreement that will replace the 
contract that expired June 30, 2010.  As directed by City Council, this agreement achieves a 
10% savings calculated on payroll costs which include base pay, pension, workers 
compensation and FICA. 
 
This tentative agreement incorporates cost-saving changes to health insurance, a pay 
reduction achieved through the loss of holiday time, a significant reduction in the City’s cost 
of pension plans, elimination of longevity pay for all MAP members who had been previously 
eligible to receive it, and elimination of the tuition reimbursement program.  This agreement 
provides for greater flexibility in the use of part-time staff thereby reducing overtime costs, 
and reduces training and overtime costs associated with shift selection in Communications.   
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-09



 

PES/jp/AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.028 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program –MAP 2011-05-10 

 

AGENDA ITEM-Ratification of 2010-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program 
- MAP  
Page Two 
 
 
 
The last component of the tentative agreement is the offering of an Early Retirement 
Incentive Program (ERIP).  A description of the program recommended by city  
administration and the actuarial valuation are attached.  The proposed program is consistent 
with the ERIP previously offered to the TFSOA and Classified and Exempt employees.  Two 
options would be offered:  a cash incentive of $1,000 per complete year of credited 
retirement service with the City of Troy, or the option to convert from a Defined Contribution 
Pension Plan to a Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  This Early Retirement Incentive Program 
must be cost neutral.  The DC to DB Program would be funded directly from the members’ 
DC accounts.  The cost associated with the cash incentive program will be covered by the 
department.   
 
A summary of the tentative agreement and the resultant savings calculation are attached. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G:Negotiations\MAP\2010\TA Summary 2011-03-10 
 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and MAP 

2010-2013 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Duration   Three year contract 
 
Pay Reduction   Pay reduced 2.5% by the equivalent of a loss of 52 hours of holiday leave  
 
Health Insurance a. Blue Cross PPO replaced with Blue Cross Community Blue Plan 1 

 (Modified): 
1. $10/$40 prescription drug rider (PDR) replaces $5/$10 PDR for 

generic/brand name drugs, including with mandatory generic, 
prior authorization, step therapy and 2X MOPD (co-pay for mail 
order prescription drugs increased to a two-month copay for a 3 
month supply) 

2. $30 office visit (OV) copay and $30 chiropractic office visit 
(COV) copay  

3. $50 emergency room (ER) copay (waived if admitted) 
4. $250/$500 basic deductible 

b. Current HMOs modified to include $10/$40 drug rider with 
mandatory generic, prior authorization, step therapy, 2X MOPD; 
$30 OV copay, $50 ER copay (waived if admitted) 

c. Employee co-pay for health insurance premium changed from flat 
amount to 3.0% of total premium cost 

d. Amount of cash-in-lieu payments for those opting out of city health 
insurance reduced for all employees to $200/month.  (Previously 
equivalent to single premium rate for employees opting out prior to 
10/13/04; $250 for employees opting out after 10/13/04.) 

 
Retirement a. For employees participating in the defined benefit pension plan, 

 employee contribution increased by 3.0%  
    b. For employees participating in the defined contribution pension  
     plan, employer contribution decreased by 3.0% 
 
Longevity Eliminated 
 
Tuition Reimbursement Eliminated  
 
Miscellaneous:  a. Job and shift selection process modified to reduce potential for  
     overtime and training costs associated with maintaining trained and 
     qualified personnel in Communications and Lock-up Sections 
    b. Early Retirement incentive Plan (ERIP) to be offered to MAP  
     members 

c. Obtained ability to supplement full-time workforce with part-time 
employees during periods of time the City provides dispatch or lock-
up services to communities in addition to Troy and Clawson 

d. Modified conditions under which personal business time is 
approved to improve management of work schedules  

e. Streamlined layoff process and obtained ability to retain part-time 
positions in City Clerk’s office during periods of layoffs in that 
department.  



MAP NEGOTIATIONS ‐ Contract Expiring 6/30/2010

PROPOSED SETTLEMENT SAVINGS

(As % of Payroll)

ISSUE

ANNUAL 

SAVINGS
Equivalent of 2.5% Reduction in Pay and 3.0% 

Reduction in Employer Cost of Pension $109,260

Replace PPO Health Insur. w/Community Blue Plan 

I Modified $130,246

Eliminate All Remaining Longevity  $18,480

Total Annual Savings $257,986

Savings as Percent of Base Pay +                             

Rollups [Pension, Work. Comp., FICA]                     

($2,563,876)  10.06%

Savings as                                                           Percent 

of Base Pay Only ($2,071,626)  12.45%

G:Negotiations/MAP/2010/Negot Settlement Savings 2011‐05‐06



1 
G:ERIP\MAP\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-03-11 

 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM  2011 
MAP Employees 

 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
The City of Troy is implementing an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) in the form of 
two options, a cash incentive or a DC to DB conversion, in order to reduce personnel costs to 
accommodate budget constraints.  The Program is being offered to eligible employees if the 
employee signs a Letter of Understanding with the City of Troy and, in the case of a union 
employee, that union agrees to the terms and conditions of the Program.  Participation in the 
Program is entirely voluntary.  Interested eligible employees in either the DB Pension Plan or the 
DC Pension Plan may elect to participate, but can only select one of the available options.  
Participating employees must retire on or before the date specified in the Plan. 
 
 
INCENTIVE OPTIONS:   
 
Cash Incentive 
Eligible employees in either the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect 
to receive a cash incentive that is equal to $1,000 for each actual complete year of credited 
service with the City of Troy as of February 28, 2011.  The cash incentive will be issued not later 
than three weeks after the employees’ designated retirement date.  The number of years for 
which the cash incentive is made shall not include years of service granted for prior government 
service from an employer other than the City of Troy.   
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan, the incentive will not be 
included in any computation of Final Average Compensation (FAC) under any provisions of the 
Retirement System.  Both the City and the employee will make the required contributions to the 
plan. 
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan, the employee and 
the City of Troy will each contribute their appropriate percentage to the plan.   
 
DC to DB Conversion 
Eligible employees in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect to transfer their total 
accumulated balance (including all employee contributions and interest thereon) to the City of 
Troy Employees Retirement System-Defined Benefit Plan.  Their pension will be based solely on 
the value of their accumulated DC account balance at the date of transfer as determined by the 
Retirement System’s actuary.   
 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Employees who are eligible to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program will be sent 
notification following approval of the program by City Council.  The notice will include the 
Early Retirement Incentive Program Voluntary Resignation Agreement and Release of Claims 
form, a Receipt form and a Waiver of Review Period form.  Employees will have a minimum of 
45 days in which to consider the Release in order to seek counsel regarding their rights.  If the 



2 
G:ERIP\MAP\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-03-11 

 

employee chooses to waive the 45-day review period, he/she must submit the signed Waiver.  
Employees who elect to participate in the Program must submit the signed Release not later than 
the end of the window period and will have seven (7) days after signing to revoke their decision.  
Retirement dates are subject to approval, and retirement must occur not later than August 12, 
2011.   
 
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS:   
 
The Program will be available to MAP employees who meet the age and service requirements 
for normal or early retirement as of February 28, 2011, or are within five years of eligibility, as 
defined by the Employee Retirement System Ordinance or by the respective collective 
bargaining agreement.  These eligibility requirements are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EFFECTIVE DATES: 
 

Window Period (45-days minimum): May 17, 2011 through July 1, 2011 
 
Revocation Period Ends (7 days):  July 8, 2011 

 
Retirement Not Later Than:  August 12, 2011 
 

 
GROUP A 
Regular Retirement 
 

Age 50 with 27 years of service; or 
Age 55 with 25 years of service; or 
Age 60 with 10 years of service 

 
Early Retirement  

Age 55 with 10 years of service 
 
 
GROUP B 

Those within five (5) years of eligibility as stated above 



 
 

 

 

 

 

January 21, 2011 

 

 

CONFIDENTIAL 

 

Mr. John Lamerato 
Assistant City Manager - Finance 

City of Troy 

500 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

 

 

Re: A Supplemental Valuation of the Effect of a Proposed Early Retirement Incentive 

Plan (ERIP) for the City of Troy-MAP Union 

 

This report presents the results of a supplemental valuation of the potential impact of a proposed Early 

Retirement Incentive Plan on the City of Troy Employees Retirement System (ERS) and Retiree 

Health Plan.  A summary of the Early Retirement Incentive Plan provisions is shown on the following 

page.   
 

Except where indicated, this valuation was based on the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the 

most recent ERS and Other Postemployment Benefits annual actuarial valuations.   
 

Both of the undersigned are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meet the 

Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion 

contained herein. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Brad Armstrong, ASA, MAAA 

 

 

 

Randall J. Dziubek, ASA, MAAA 

 

BLA/RJD:lr 

Enclosures 



January 21, 2011  -1- 

 

CITY OF TROY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-MAP UNION 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 

 

ERIP  

Eligibility: Member is eligible or within five years of eligibility for regular or early retirement as of 

December 31, 2010.  Members of both the ERS and the Defined Contribution Plan (DC) are 

eligible for the ERIP. 

 

Benefits provided by the ERIP: 

 ERS Members – Immediate commencement of unreduced retirement benefit based on 

accrued service as of December 31, 2010.  

 ERS and DC Members - Immediate commencement of retiree health benefits based on 

accrued service as of December 31, 2010. 

 ERS and DC Members – All eligible members as of December 31, 2010 will receive a lump 

sum payment of $1,000 for each complete year of service as of the same date.  These lump 

sums will not be funded by the Retirement System.  In the case of DC members, the 

eligibility for the lump sum is contingent on not converting their DC balance to a DB 

annuity under the Retirement System.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



January 21, 2011  -2- 

 

 

 

CITY OF TROY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-MAP UNION 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 

DATA PROVIDED TO THE ACTUARY:   The City provided a listing of all of the active members that are 

believed to be eligible for the ERIP.  The listing was reviewed for reasonableness, but was not audited 

by the actuary.  The listing contained credited service projected to December 31, 2010.   

 

A summary of individuals deemed eligible for the ERIP and included in this report is shown below:  

 
 

 

Number Total

Group Count Annual Payroll

ERS

NR Eligible 4           190,439    $     60.4 yrs. 18.0 yrs. 18.0 yrs.

ER Eligible 1           62,293             58.3 22.3 22.3

Eligible within 5 yrs. 6           321,996           50.7 20.2 20.2

Total ERS 11         574,728    $     54.9 yrs. 19.6 yrs. 19.6 yrs.

DC Plan

NR Eligible 1           43,846    $       48.3 yrs. 10.7 yrs. 10.7 yrs.

ER Eligible 2           94,723             53.5 19.8 19.8

Eligible within 5 yrs. 5           214,183           56.2 7.9 7.9

Total DC Plan 8           352,752    $     54.5 yrs. 11.2 yrs. 11.2 yrs.

Data as of December 31, 2010

Average Average Service

Age Benefit Eligibility

 



January 21, 2011  -3- 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

The estimated impact of the proposed ERIP as of December 31, 2010 is shown below, assuming 100% 

of eligible members retire.  The “Retiree Health” results represent the impact of immediate retirement 

for both ERS and DC Plan members. 

  

Annual contribution results shown below were determined by amortizing the increase in the present 

value of benefits over a five-year period as a level percent of pay.  These contribution results are not 

the expected increases in the Annual Required Contributions (ARC) that will be determined in the 

actuarial valuations following the ERIP, but are a good representation of the expected overall costs of 

the ERIP if paid off over a five-year period.  

 

 

 

Annual Contribution

Required to Amortize Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed

PV Increase Over 5 Years to Retire Under the Program

Pension 180,403$      39,386$         

Retiree Health 454,554        99,239           

Sub-Total 634,957$      138,625$       

$1,000 x Service * 261,500        NA

Total 896,457$      138,625$       

Reduced Member DB Contributions 53,105$        11,594$         

Increased Benefits Plus Reduced

Member DB Contributions 949,562$      150,219$       

Increase in 

Present Value (PV)

 of Projected Benefits

 
* The $1,000 x Service amounts shown above are based on accrued service as of December 31, 2010.  These lump sum 

payments will not be funded by the Retirement System. The cost to amortize over 5 years is not shown since it is 

assumed these payments will be made immediately following the retirement of participating members.  

 

 

Increase in Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for Retiree Health Benefits 

 

The Annual Required Contribution for retiree health benefits is currently based on the Entry-Age 

Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The expected increase in the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 

under the EAN cost method due to the proposed ERIP is $903,017.  Under current methods, 30-year 

amortization of the increase in the AAL under the EAN cost method will be included in the calculation 

of the ARC in the valuation following the ERIP. 

 

 

 

 

 



January 21, 2011  -4- 

 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

The chart below illustrates the total expected cost of the additional pension and retiree health benefits 

provided under the ERIP alternatives if spread over a five year period. These results do not reflect the 

potential savings associated with the ERIP due to decreased payroll and fringe benefit costs and other 

factors. For an overall measure of the estimated cost/savings associated with the ERIP, the costs shown 

below should be combined with any expected savings due to decreased payroll and other factors.  If the 

expected savings due to these factors over the next five years is equal to the costs shown below, the 

ERIP can be considered cost neutral to the City. 

 

 

 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

1 2 3 4 5 6

A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

st

Year

Estimated Annual Cost of ERIP Alternatives Amortized Over 5 Years

 

 

 
The estimated cost of the $1,000 x service benefit is shown in Year 1.  The 5-year amortization of 

additional costs under the ERIP is shown in Years 2-6.  Year 1 represents the fiscal year ending June 

30, 2011. We assumed that 50% of the eligible DC Plan members will elect to convert their DC 

balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System thereby forgoing any lump sum payment. 



January 21, 2011  -5- 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

It is likely that less than 100% of eligible members will choose to retire under this ERIP.  In the table 

below, we show the estimated increase in the present value of benefits and the 5-year amortization 

payment of these increases based on various election percentages (please refer to Comment 4 on page 

6).   

 

 

 

 

Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed

to Retire Under the Program

100% 50% 20% 10%

Number Assumed to Retire from ERS 11                 6                   2                   1                 

Number Assumed to Retire from DC Plan 8                   4                   2                   1                 

Increase in PV of Benefits Plus Reduced 

Member DB Contributions

Pension 180,403$      90,202$        36,081$        18,040$      

Retiree Health 454,554        227,277        90,911          45,455        

$1,000 x Service 261,500        130,750        52,300          26,150        

Reduced Member DB Contributions 53,105          26,553          10,621          5,311          

Total 949,562$      474,782$      189,913$      94,956$      

5-Year Amortization of Above (In addition 

to One-Time Cost of $1,000 x Service)

Pension 39,386$        19,693$        7,877$          3,939$        

Retiree Health 99,239          49,620          19,848          9,924          

Reduced Member DB Contributions 11,594          5,797            2,319            1,159          

Total 150,219$      75,110$        30,044$        15,022$       
 

 

Please see the Comments on pages 6 and 7 for important information essential to understanding this 

report. 

  



January 21, 2011  -6- 

 

COMMENTS 
 

 

Comment 1:  This report is based on an assumption that individuals reported by the City as eligible for 

the ERIP, elect the ERIP and then retire on December 31, 2010.  Data used for this report was based on 

the data provided by the City regarding eligible members, service as of December 31, 2010.  Pay data 

provided for the December 31, 2009 annual actuarial valuation of the ERS was used to estimate 

pensionable earnings at retirement.  

 

 

Comment 2:  This report is based on the data and assumptions noted above and the proposed ERIP 

provisions shown on page 1.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are 

unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important and relevant plan 

provisions are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations were made, you 

should contact the author of this report prior to relying on information in the report.   

 

 

Comment 3:  This report shows the potential impact of the proposed ERIP on ERS pension and retiree 

health care costs as of December 31, 2010.  The non-retirement costs/savings in other areas (payroll 

savings, fringe benefit savings, employer contributions to new hire defined contribution accounts, etc.) 

are not included in this report.  

 

 

Comment 4:  The cost of the proposed ERIP has been developed assuming that all of the individuals 

shown in this report are eligible for the ERIP and will elect to retire on December 31, 2010.  Please be 

aware that the cost of the ERIP will vary for each individual member.  For example, if half of the 

eligible employees elect to retire, and these employees are the ones who would benefit most from the 

incentive, the cost would be more than 50% of the maximum (100% retire) cost shown in this report.  

In other words, in the examples of 50%, 20%, and 10% election percentages on page 3, the cost would 

be increased if the employees electing to retire are the employees who would benefit most from the 

proposal. 

 

 

Comment 5:  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommended practice for 

evaluating the use of early retirement incentives has been included in the Appendix of this report.  The 

GFOA recommends the use of a short amortization period (such as 3-5 years) to finance the 

incremental cost of an early retirement incentive plan.  Since savings are typically realized over a short 

period, the costs should also be recognized over a similar period.  Regardless of the time period 

selected for funding, we recommend that policy makers carefully consider the 5 year results shown in 

this correspondence in the decision making process.  

 

 

Comment 6:  The calculations are based upon assumptions regarding future events, which may or may 

not materialize.  They are also based upon present and proposed plan provisions that are outlined in the 

report.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are unreasonable, that the 

plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions relevant to this proposal are 

not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations were made, you should contact 

the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the report. 



January 21, 2011  -7- 

 

COMMENTS  
 

 

 

Comment 7:  If you have reason to believe that the information provided in this report is inaccurate, or 

is in any way incomplete, or if you need further information in order to make an informed decision on 

the subject matter of this report, please contact the authors of the report prior to making such decision. 

 

 

Comment 8:  No statement in this report is intended to be interpreted as a recommendation in favor of 

the changes, or in opposition to them. 

 

 

Comment 9:  This report is intended to describe the financial effect of the proposed plan changes on 

the retirement system. Except as otherwise noted, potential effects on other benefit plans were not 

considered. 

 

Comment 10: The reader of this report should keep in mind that actuarial calculations are 

mathematical estimates based on current data and assumptions about future events (which may or may 

not materialize).  Please note that actuarial calculations can and do vary from one valuation year to the 

next, sometimes significantly if the group valued is very small (less than 30 lives).  As a result, the cost 

impact of a benefit change may fluctuate over time, as the demographics of the group changes. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

 



 

January 13, 2011  -8- 

 

 

 
 

GFOA Recommended Practice 

 

Evaluating Use of Early Retirement Incentives - 2004 

 

Background.  Governments occasionally offer early retirement incentives (ERIs)
1
 to employees as a 

strategy to reduce payroll costs or stimulate short-term turnover among staff.  ERIs are temporary, 

offered during a window that usually covers a period of months.  They increase the economic value of 

the standard retirement benefit. Historically, ERIs rarely have succeeded, since costs are often greater 

than initially anticipated by the government offering the incentive, and savings are lower than 

projected. 

 

Recommendation.  GFOA recommends that governments exercise extreme caution if considering 

ERIs.  Governments should take several actions prior to the decision to offer an ERI in terms of (1) 

goal-setting, (2) cost/benefit analysis, and (3) budgetary analysis.  Governments should also develop an 

implementation plan. 

 

1.  Goal-Setting for ERIs 

 

Governments should be explicit in setting documented goals for the ERI.  Goals can be financial in 

nature, such as realizing permanent efficiencies in staffing or achieving budgetary objectives.  ERIs 

can also be designed to achieve human resource goals, such as creating vacancies that allow for 

additional promotion opportunities and allowing management to bring in new staff.  Any ERI goals 

should not conflict with other retirement plan goals (e.g., features to reduce turnover or increase 

retention). 

 

An explicit statement of goals is needed to judge the ultimate success of the initiative and to develop 

performance measures.  Further, having a statement of goals promotes transparency.  Inappropriate 

goals such as rewarding a select group of staff should be explicitly rejected.  Potential conflicts of 

interest among decision-makers who design an ERI should be monitored closely, since any self-dealing 

is costly and could harm the long-term credibility of the government entity. 

 

2.  Cost/benefit analysis 

 

In judging whether an ERI should be offered, governments should assess the potential costs and 

benefits of ERI proposals, and the cost/benefit analysis should be linked to the goals of the ERI.  For 

example, if a government sets a financial goal of obtaining long-term staffing efficiencies, then an 

                                                 
1
 The scope of this recommended practice does not cover deferred retirement option plans (DROP) or partial lump-sum 

option plans (PLOP), which often promote employee retention.  The CORBA Committee may address this issue separately. 



 

January 13, 2011  -9- 

 

independent cost/benefit analysis should determine whether the ERI will actually bring about such  

 

staffing efficiencies.  A cost/benefit analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account 

direct and indirect impacts, such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and 

additional contractor costs.  In addition, it should take into account the effect upon both the plan 

sponsor and the pension fund (if the pension fund is a separate organization).  Governments should 

retain an actuary to assist in conducting a cost/benefit analysis. 

 

Material changes to the ERI proposal during the legislative process should trigger adjustments to the 

cost/benefit and budgetary analyses. 

 

Regarding financially-driven ERIs, a cost/benefit analysis should compare long-term benefits and costs 

against the “default” scenario of a hiring freeze.  Most financially-driven ERIs project financial 

benefits based on payroll savings related to staff departures. However, any such savings should be 

discounted, because a hiring freeze also creates payroll savings (owing to the normal rate of staff 

departures).  Thus, the ERI benefit is limited to the marginal increase in staff departures attributable to 

the ERI.  Governments that attribute all staff departures to an ERI would over-state the ERI benefit, 

thus distorting the cost/benefit analysis. 

 

Financially-driven ERIs may also obtain savings by replacing highly compensated staff with lower-

paid staff.  Analysis of such ERIs must take into account the fact that newly hired staff tend to 

experience faster salary increases than other employees. 

 

If early retirement incentives are offered, they should be offered very infrequently and without a 

predictable schedule to avoid the expectation that another ERI will be offered.  Such an expectation 

would distort normal employee retirement patterns.   

 

The incremental costs of an ERI should be amortized over a short-term payback period, such as three 

to five years.  This payback period should match the period in which the savings are realized.  To 

calculate the incremental costs of an ERI, governments should conduct an actuarial analysis that 

discloses the present value of the liabilities associated with an ERI.  Governments that have over-

funded pension plans should avoid allocating any actuarial surplus to finance the incremental costs of 

the ERI.   

 

3. Budgetary considerations 

 

In order to develop accurate budgetary estimates for the ERI, it is necessary to estimate the incremental 

cost of the ERI, which will vary according to the level of employee participation.  Any budgetary 

analysis should project multiple scenarios for employee participation levels. 

 

A budgetary analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account direct and indirect impacts, 

such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and additional contractor costs.   

 

Because a collective bargaining agreement may affect potential ERI costs and benefits, it should be 

reviewed prior to developing budgetary estimates.   

  



 

January 13, 2011  -10- 

 

4. Implementation considerations 

 

If implementing an ERI, at a minimum, governments should take into account the following points: 

 

 A communication plan is desirable to help employees understand the ERI in the context 

of overall retirement planning; 

 

 It may be necessary to gain input from collective bargaining units; 

 

 Governments should consider the impact upon service delivery after employees retire, 

with identification of critical personnel whose services must be maintained; 

 

 The duration of the window should take into account the ability of retirement staff to 

manage retirement application workloads, among other factors; and 

 

 Performance measures should be used to ensure ERI goals are met.  For financially-

driven ERIs, governments should track and report direct and indirect costs and benefits to 

determine if goals are met, such as for vacancies and contract costs. 

 

 

 

References:   

 

A Primer on Early Retirement Incentives, GFOA, 2004. 

 

 

Approved by the GFOA Executive Board, October 15, 2004. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held May 9, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 8:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None 
presented. 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: No Carryover Items. 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: No Public Hearings. 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Daniels, Janice Discussed budget and tax concerns 
Lai, Chat Discussed budget and library funding concerns 
DeBacker, Deborah Discussed budget and election concerns 
Killman, Brad Discussed saving the library 
Grix, E. James Discussed tax concerns and library functions 
Hamann, Art Discussed library visitors
Burke, Thomas Discussed funding the library 
Beck, Paul Discussed funding the library
Vert, John Discussed funding the library
Schepke, Gordon Discussed funding the library
DeBacker, Deborah Discussed special election
Daniels, Janice Discussed legislative guidelines
Killman, Brad,  Discussed funding the library 
Peters, Richard Discussed Osama bin Laden
Johnson, Ivan Discussed funding for City functions
Kantamaneni, Vennela Discussed keeping the library open
Tagle, John Discussed options for funding library and other functions
Bloomingdale, Bruce Discussed City budget issues
MacDonell, Sharon Discussed City financial issues and misinformation 
Brake, Dan Discussed City financial issues and library concerns
Yashinsky, Neil Discussed funding the library and special election 
Krent, Tom Discussed funding the library
Kempen, Edward Discussed special election
Hodorek, Ellen Discussed funding for the library and City functions 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

Schenk, Donald Discussed veterans memorial event in Veterans’ Plaza
Geiger, M.I. Discussed funding for the library
Teodoridis, Cristian Discussed funding the library and budget concerns 
Simham, Sandya Discussed funding the library
Brodzinski, Susan Discussed special election and funding library 
  

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 10:04 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 10:18 PM. 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-089 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL meet in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation: Troy v. Safeway Acquisition Company, and as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

I-4 Interlocal Agreement with the City of Sterling Heights and US Department of 
Homeland Security – ICE for Use of Gun Range 

 
Resolution #2011-05-090 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 

a) Agreement for Use of Gun Range – City of Sterling Heights 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the City of Sterling Heights for the use of the City’s gun range; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

b)  Agreement for Use of Gun Range – US Department of Homeland Security – ICE  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the US Department of Homeland Security – ICE for the use of the 
City’s gun range; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

I-5 Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments - Correction 
 
A. RESOLUTION TO RESCIND PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-091 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS City Council Resolution #2011-04-078, 
Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 International 
Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code, adopted by the Troy City Council at the Regular 
City Council meeting on April 18, 2011, as follows: 
 

I-4 Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 
International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code 

 
Resolution #2011-04-078 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City 
Management; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
B. RESOLUTION TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 OF THE TROY CITY CODE: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-092 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City Management City 
Council Action Report dated May 3, 2011; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 

Catering 
 
Resolution #2011-05-093 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide catering 
services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Encore Catering of Troy, MI, the caterer with the highest score and rate of 
return, as a result of a best value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the 
public interest at a return schedule of 15% of gross receipts less Michigan sales tax, or 
$12,000.00 minimum guarantee per year, whichever is greater, expiring May 9, 2014. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon caterer submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, the ability 
to qualify as the holder of the City’s liquor license and all other specified requirements; and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-05-094 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, contracts for one-year requirements of Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to various low bidders (Resolution 
#2011-04-085-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, After the award of contract, Richmond Transport Inc. withdrew their bid for 6A Slag 
due to a calculation error;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of 6A Slag with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from Richmond Transport Inc. and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next 
lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI at $13.23 per ton, as contained 
on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all other items contained in resolution 2011-04-085-J4b 
REMAIN in full force and effect as originally stipulated. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies 
 
Resolution #2011-05-095 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, On March 28, 2011, a contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies 
was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation of Linden, NJ 
(Resolution # 2011-03-064-J4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Central Poly Corporation has declined the consideration for award due to their 
choice not to meet insurance requirements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies from Central Poly 
Corporation and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest total bidder, Empire 
Equipment and Supply Co. of Detroit, MI, for an estimated total cost of $16,134.00 at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened February 23, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring March 31, 2012. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2011-05-096-J-1a 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of item J-2 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Asphalt 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide asphalt 
paving materials-hot patch with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidders, 
Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, for Items 1-5 and Item 7, asphalt paving materials; and 
Cadillac Asphalt LLC of Shelby Township for Item 6, bulk tack coat for an estimated total cost of 
$82,900.00 and $2,500.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
April 19, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with 
contracts expiring December 31, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues – Michigan Municipal League (MML) 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2011 through April 30, 
2012, in the amount of $11,301.00. 
 
J-5 Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 

and 4 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-5 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

 
WHEREAS, Hastings Air Energy Control is the authorized dealer and sole provider in Michigan 
to service and install Plymovent equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, MIOSHA standards require that firefighter exposure to diesel exhaust emissions 
within enclosed facilities be controlled; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to operational requirements of the Fire Department, fire apparatus have been 
redeployed from one fire station to another prompting the need to expand the exhaust collection 
systems at Fire stations 3 and 4;    
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of materials 
and labor to expand the Plymovent vehicle exhaust system at Fire stations 3 and 4 from 
Hastings Air Energy Control, as detailed in Appendix 1, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of $11,600.00. 
 
J-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from First 

Industrial Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from First American Development 
Services, Inc., owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-05-097 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as corrected: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of April 18, 2011 
b. Special City Council Meeting of April 25, 2011 
c. Special City Council Meeting of May 2, 2011 
d. Special City Council Meeting of May 5, 2011 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
Proposed Millage Question - Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 
Resolution #2011-05-098 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney to draft ballot language 
for the City of Troy Public Library Dedicated General Operation Millage Proposal for placement 
on the August 2, 2011 Election, the following ballot question: 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO 0.7 MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to 0.7 mills against 
all taxable property for a 5-year period of time, 2011 through 2015, for public 
library general operating purposes? 0.7 mills are equal to $0.70 on each 
$1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will 
raise approximately $2.9 million the first year it is levied. The millage will be 
levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Fleming, Howrylak,  
 
MOTION PASSED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT  May 9, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust-Final-January 12, 2011 
b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-March 9, 2011 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-March 14, 2011 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-March 15, 2011 
f) Planning Commission-Final-March 22, 2011 
g) Planning Commission-Draft-April 12, 2011 
h) Planning Commission-Final-April 12, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
a) March 31, 2011 – Quarterly Financial Report 
b) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 5/01/2011 
c) 2010 Fire Department Annual Report 
d) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  David Smith v. Stopczynski 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS: No Study Items Presented 

 
P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Troy v Safeway Acquisition Company and Strategy for Labor Negotiations 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 11:11 PM. 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:20 PM. 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:17 AM. 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew  
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft May 9, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held May 9, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

The Meeting RECESSED at 6:01 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 6:05 PM in Council Board Room. 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration reviewed the 2011/2012 
Budget including Capital Projects, Enterprise Funds, and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Wrap-up: Discussion took place regarding the Budget Wrap-up 
 
Decision on the Library: Discussion took place regarding a potential Special August Election for 
a Dedicated Library Millage Proposal for the ballot. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Bruce Bloomingdale Discussed budget concerns 
Richard Peters Discussed budget concerns 
Dan Brake Discussed budget concerns 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:00PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-02b



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

ANN COMISKEY 
 
WHEREAS, Long-time Troy resident Ann Comiskey has built a solid reputation as the Executive Director of the Troy 
Community Coalition for the past 9 years, as well as a committed volunteer, serving many organizations in our community 
with an enthusiasm and dedication that is respected by all who know her; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ann began her career 38 years ago with the State of Michigan working for the Department of Social Services in 
Wayne County.  As a caseworker she offered supportive services to adults on public assistance.  Her social services work 
eventually brought her to Highland Park where she worked for over 23 years in the Adult & Alternative Education arena; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 2002 Ann was hired as the Executive Director of the Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug and 
Alcohol Abuse and the Coalition of Healthy Communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ann’s work with the Troy Community Coalition included developing and implementing prevention strategies 
based on our community’s needs; influencing and promoting community norms to those supporting a lifestyle free from the 
abuse of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs through environmental strategies affecting the total population; and  
   
WHEREAS, Ann is one of 28 Leader/Mentors for the Community Anti-Drug Coalitions of America (CADCA) Institute and 
provides coalition “personal coaching” sessions at CADCA national conferences, and is currently the Co Chair of the 
Prevention Coalition of Southeast Michigan (PREVCO), a member of the Advisory Council of the State Incentive Grant (SIG) 
and chair of the Coalition Workgroup; and 
 
WHEREAS, As a committed volunteer, Ann has served as the board secretary of the Troy Chamber of Commerce, a 
Lifetime Member of the Troy Women’s Association, and advisory board member of the Michigan Nonprofit Association.    She 
is a Eucharistic Minister and member of the Mission’s committee at St. Anastasia Catholic Church; and   
 
WHEREAS, One of the most important aspects in Ann’s life is her family, including her husband of 42 years Pat, daughter 
Jennifer, son-in-law John and beautiful granddaughter Riley Ann who all are delighted that she is finally retiring to spend 
more time with her family and care for precious granddaughter Riley;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Ann Comiskey for her selfless and tireless service and her many contributions to the betterment of the 
Community; and  

BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City Management and the 
Citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health, happiness and continued success in all future 
endeavors to Ann during her retirement years.  Her influence and contributions will remain alive in our hearts and will impact 
each of us as we journey into the future. 

 
Presented this 16th day of May 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-01a & J-03a



bartholotl
Text Box
C-1b & J-03b

bartholotl
Text Box

bartholotl
Text Box



 
 
Date May 11, 2011 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Millage Questions Requested by Mayor ProTem Kerwin 
  
 
Mayor ProTem Kerwin requested that a millage question be advanced to City Council for a 
Dedicated Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Millage Proposal. The proposed language is 
attached. The language has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s office 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

bartholotl
Text Box
L-01



 
a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor ProTem Kerwin 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 
2011 Election, the following ballot questions:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Dedicated Operational 

Millage Proposal as Requested by Mayor ProTem Kerwin 
 

CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 1.0 MILLS FOR A 
DEDICATED ROAD MAINTENANCE AND SNOW PLOWING PURPOSES WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 1.0 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, for 
the purpose of providing dedicated funding for road maintenance and snow 
plowing operations? 1.0 mills are equal to $1.00 on each $1,000.00 of 
taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will raise 
approximately $4,448,750 in 2011, the first year it is levied.  Millage 
revenue would be disbursed to the City for road purposes.  Of this amount, 
state law requires the capture of approximately $4,833 for Local 
Development Finance Authority, $71,457 for the Downtown Development 
Authority and $185 for the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.   This 
proposal is authorized under Section 6 of Article IX of the Michigan 
Constitution. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on April 26, 2011 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-04-021 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-022 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 12, 2011 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
Abstain: Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat presented a summary of the April 19, 2011 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the April 27, 2011 DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the newly adopted Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Branigan reported on the windmills situated in front of City Hall. 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 967) – Proposed Gaucho 

Brazilian Steakhouse, 3635 Rochester Road, West Side of Rochester between 
Troywood and Colebrook, Section 22, Currently Zoned B-3 (General Business) 
District and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) District 
 
Resolution #2011-04-023 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Gaucho Brazilian 
Steakhouse, located on the west side of Rochester between Troywood and 
Colebrook (3635 Rochester Road), in Section 22, within the B-3 zoning district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the parking immediately to the south of the building be revisited or 

redesigned to consider angled parking and a sidewalk added to connect the 
entry point of the building to the western part of the building. 

 
2. To grant the Planning Department discretion to eliminate one parking 

space, if necessary, from the site plan as originally submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\04-26-11 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
May 9, 2011  
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 2011  

 
 
Background 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use BidCorp with the 
provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and 
implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network), which can be accessed through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement 
website used by the City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. The city of 
Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line auction website.  It was a 
Purchasing goal to have one e-procurement website operational for all functions. 
 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, one (1) lot women’s bath 
robe, coat and socks; one (1) lot VHF Motorola Sabre radios and accessories; one (1) HP Laptop; one (1) lot 
floppy disc and CD storage containers; one (1) lot lawn ornaments; one (1) Palm M515 Handheld; four (4) Dell 
computers; one (1) lot Sony digital cameras; one (1) IBM 6400-004 Printer; one (1) IBM ThinkCentre Desktop; 
one (1) silver Apple laptop; one (1) lot Bose speakers; one (1) Dell PDA; one (1) Dell monitor stand; one (1) lot 
girls and boys coats; one (1) Honeywell safe; one (1) Levi tri-fold wallet; one (1) lot valances and curtain rods; 
one (1) lot Infinity speakers; one (1) HP Touchsmart 300 PC; one (1) Blue Nintendo DS; one (1) Hitachi DVD 
Cam; one (1) lot MP3 players; one (1) Blue Nintendo DS and Mario Party DS Game; one (1) lot stickers, 
temporary tattoos and wrist bands; one (1) lot Sony Memory Stick Pro Duo cards; one (1) metal lawn ornament; 
one (1) Sony stereo receiver; one (1) Harman Kardon AVR Receiver; one (1) lot HP Print cartridges; two (2) 
Sony PSP portable Playstations; and one (1) lot Konica copier toner cartridges all auctioned on-line through 
BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from April 11, 2011 and closed by, April 17, 2011.   
 
The sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. (Chapter 7, Sec 8)   
 
Recommendation 
This agenda item reports final results of April 2011 auctions to City management. No action is required. 
 
Funding Considerations -  
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS  NET INCOME 
Radios, lawn ornaments, clothing, computers, speakers, etc.   $             4,318.55  

   

 FEES:  
5% (radios, lawn ornaments, clothing, computers, etc) Fee             ($ 215.93)  
Sales Tax +6%,(radios, lawn ornaments, clothing, etc) $               259.11  

   

   $      4,361.73
G:\Purchasing\Auction - Reports\20110509 Agenda-Departmental Reports – Purchasing Department Final Reporting – Bidnet on-line Auction Services – April 2011 –Misc.pdf  

bartholotl
Text Box
N-02a







bartholotl
Text Box
N-03a



bartholotl
Text Box
N-05

bartholotl
Text Box





bartholotl
Text Box
N-06
































	20110516 Agenda
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
	a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Ann Comiskey
	b) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Building Safety Month – May 2011


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure
	I-5 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget
	I-6 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget
	I-7 Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget
	I-8 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program – American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)
	I-9 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2010-2013 and Early Retirement Incentive Program

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011
	b) Special City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a) Ann Comiskey
	b) Building Safety Month – May 2011


	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Council Referrals:
	a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin


	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Planning Commission-Draft-April 26, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services-April 11, 2011

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from Bill & Sylvia Eland to Troy Police Officers regarding Accident Call Response

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16047-R
	N-6  Responses to Inquiries Made at Budget Wrap-up Session

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT




